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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT DISTRICTOFN.H. 

DISTRICT OF NEW HAMPSHIRE FILED 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) 2011 MAR | 8 P U: 29 

Cr.No. /' //-ee-99-ff/ -s/Y) 
SADIE STANHOPE NG, 

Defendant. 

CRIMINAL INFORMATION 

The United States Attorney charges: 

COUNT ONE 
MAIL FRAUD 

[18 U.S.C. § 1341] 

1. At all times relevant to this Information, defendant SADIE STANHOPE NG lived 

in Milford, New Hampshire. 

2. From in or around March 2005 to in or around October 2006, in the District of 

New Hampshire, the defendant, 

SADIE STANHOPE NG, 

did knowingly and intentionally devise, and intend to devise, a scheme and artifice to defraud 

and to obtain money and property by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and 

promises, and for the purpose of executing such scheme and attempting to do so, did cause 

matter to be sent and delivered by the Postal Service and private and commercial interstate 

carrier, and caused such matter to be delivered according to the direction thereon. 

3. It was part of the scheme that defendant SADIE STANHOPE NG ("STANHOPE 

NG") and others defrauded and obtained money from mortgage lenders by arranging sham real 

estate transactions and obtaining mortgage loans through straw borrowers as follows: 
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a. Scheme organizers contacted persons facing foreclosure on their homes 

and solicited them to enter into transactions that purportedly would allow the distressed 

homeowners to stop the foreclosures, remain in their homes, re-establish their credit, and obtain 

new mortgage financing on their homes within two years. 

b. The proposed transactions required the distressed homeowners to deed 

title to their homes to scheme organizers or to limited liability companies ("LLCs") controlled by 

scheme organizers. Under the terms of the proposed transactions, the homeowners would pay 

rent for two years while remaining in their homes, and then be given opportunities to repurchase 

their homes at a stipulated price - usually higher than the payoff amounts on the homeowners' 

existing mortgages. Scheme organizers represented that they or their LLCs would pay off the 

homeowners' existing mortgages and hold the properties until the homeowners repurchased their 

homes at the established repurchase prices. 

c. Many distressed homeowners agreed to enter into the proposed 

transactions. As promised, scheme organizers paid off those distressed homeowners' existing 

mortgages, but they did so by obtaining new, usually much larger, mortgage loans on the 

properties. The scheme organizers immediately converted the additional borrowed money to 

their own use, effectively eliminating whatever equity in the properties otherwise would have 

been available to the homeowners if they were to complete the repurchase. They also effectively 

rendered the resale of the property back to the distressed homeowner extremely difficult, if not 

impossible, as scheme organizers did not have sufficient financial resources to pay off the newer, 

larger mortgages they obtained and thereby provide any repurchasing homeowner clear title. 
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d. To obtain the new, larger mortgage loans, the scheme organizers submitted 

mortgage loan applications to lenders on behalf of "straw" buyers who were purportedly 

purchasing the properties for themselves, when, in fact, they were them purchasing them on 

behalf of the organizers. The straw buyers never intended to pay for or live in the properties and 

acted at the direction of other scheme participants. Scheme organizers assured the straws that 

they would have no further obligations and would never need to make any payments on the loans 

for which they were the named borrowers of record. Scheme organizers established high prices 

for the properties and obtained appraisals consistent with those prices, thereby maximizing the 

amount of money lenders would agree to finance. 

e. The straw buyers' loan applications - which were usually prepared by 

other scheme participants - contained materially false representations. In addition to 

misrepresenting the straw buyers as bona fide purchasers of the properties, the loan applications 

contained materially false statements as to the straw buyers' employment, income, liabilities and 

assets, as well as their intended use of the property being purchased - usually falsely indicating 

that they intended to use the property as a residence. Scheme organizers concealed from the 

lenders the fact that, in reality, the distressed homeowners would continue to occupy the 

properties as rent-paying tenants. Scheme organizers made payments on the new, larger 

mortgage loans taken out in the name of the straw buyers using the rental money paid to them by 

the distressed homeowners. The loan applications were submitted to lenders chosen by scheme 

organizers, when the same straw was used in more than one sham transaction, scheme organizers 

submitted the loan applications for that straw buyer to different lenders. 

f. Additionally, in most of the transactions between the beginning of the 

scheme in March 2005 through April 2006, the scheme organizers filed liens directly or 
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indirectly in favor of themselves purportedly based on second or third mortgage loans which 

simply did not exist. At the settlements for those transactions, the settlement agents made 

payments to satisfy the purported underlying mortgage loans, which scheme organizers used for 

their own personal benefit and to continue the scheme. 

g. Between in or about March and in or about May 2005, defendant 

STANHOPE NG participated in the scheme as a "straw" buyer in seven transactions. In each of 

those seven transactions, defendant STANHOPE NG signed loan applications for new, larger 

mortgages with representations that she knew to be materially false, including, that she was the 

bona fide purchaser of the property and, on most of the applications, misrepresentations that she 

intended to use the properties as her primary residence, to the exclusion of any rentals. She also 

made material misrepresentations about her income, her assets and liabilities. In addition, to 

facilitate her mortgage approvals, defendant STANHOPE NG deposited to her bank account 

$30,000 she received from scheme organizers - with the understanding that she would return it to 

them after her involvement as a straw buyer ended. The purpose of that parking arrangement was 

to make defendant STANHOPE NG's financial condition appear to lenders to be better than it 

actually was. The aggregate amount of the seven loans for which defendant acted as a straw 

buyer was $1,480,000. The scheme participants obtained $468,000 of that amount as payoffs of 

the non-existent second and third mortgage loans purportedly underlying the liens described 

above. 

h. As the scheme progressed and additional straw buyers were needed, scheme 

organizers, including defendant STANHOPE NG, solicited relatives, friends and even strangers 

to act as straws buyers, offering monetary rewards (typically $5,000 per transaction) in exchange 

for the use of the straw buyers' identities and credit for the sham transactions. Throughout the 
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scheme, its organizers used the term "investors" when referring to the straw buyers even though 

they never provided any funds or other consideration typically associated with an "investment." 

Defendant STANHOPE NG convinced her then-boyfriend to act as a straw buyer in three 

transactions that included false representations in loan applications similar to those that 

defendant STANHOPE NG made in the seven transactions in which she served as a straw buyer. 

I. At formal closings conducted by settlement agents, the properties were 

deeded to the straw buyers and, after payments to secured parties and other creditors, the 

remaining loan proceeds were disbursed directly or indirectly to scheme organizers. After they 

stopped the practice of recording fictitious second and third mortgages in or about April 2006 

(following a state regulatory enforcement action against certain of the scheme participants), 

scheme organizers obtained their "profits" by way of disbursements to the sellers or buyers, 

which was always one of organizers, one of their LLCs or one of their straw buyers. The deeds 

and mortgages for transactions in the names of straws buyers were recorded in county registries 

of deeds. Scheme organizers in many cases instructed the straw buyers to re-deed the properties 

to entities they controlled, but those deeds were not recorded, thus leaving the straw buyers as the 

owners and mortgagors of record. 

4. In connection with her purchases as a straw buyer, defendant STANHOPE NG 

caused numerous documents and checks to be sent and delivered by the Postal Service and 

private and commercial interstate carriers, including but not limited to a check in the amount of 

$232,455.75 that was sent via the Postal Service from Salem, New Hampshire, to Newton, 

Massachusetts on or about May 9, 2005. This check was used to pay off an existing mortgage on 

a property located at 44 Ann's Lane, Hampton, New Hampshire, allowing for the discharge of 

that mortgage necessary to clear title to the property. The check was issued by the settlement 
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agent at a closing where defendant STANHOPE NG, as borrower of record and as part of the 

scheme, obtained from Option One Mortgage new, larger mortgage loans on the property, 

specifically a first mortgage plus a home equity line of credit in the total amount of $340,000. 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341 and 2. 

Dated: March 18,2011 

By: 

JOHN P. KACAVAS 
United States Attorney 
District of New Hampshire 

William E. Morse 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 
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